

Minutes of the 3rd Annual Meeting

Iowa State College Veterinary Medical Alumni Association

Hotel Fort Des Moines, Des Moines, Iowa

January 18, 1956

The meeting was called to order at 8:00 p.m. with Vice President P. V. Neuzil presiding in the absence of President Stanley L. Hendricks. The minutes of the 2nd annual meeting of 1955 (as printed in Vol. XVII, No. 2 of the Iowa State College Veterinarian) were presented by Secretary H. D. Bergman, and approved as read.

The first major item of the agenda was the report of the Executive Committee presented by the secretary. The report is as follows:

Article II of the By-Laws stipulates that there shall be at least one regular business meeting held during the annual convention of the Iowa Veterinary Medical Association at a time and date determined by the Executive Committee. Article I, Section 4, states, in part, that the Executive Committee shall assume and have general supervision of the Association and act as an advisory board.

The Executive Committee is pleased to report that in addition to its routine responsibilities in the management of the Association all special instructions given to it at the 1955 business session have been carried out. Details will be given later in this report. The cash assets of

Issue 2, 1956

the Association as of this report are \$1219.70 compared to \$789.70 of the 1955 report after all operation expenses have been paid and \$1.00 allocated from membership fees to the I.S.C. Veterinarian for the members' annual subscriptions.

It will be recalled that at the organizational meeting of 1954, the question of the advisability of incorporating the Association was raised and by unanimous consent referred to the Executive Committee with power to act. The Committee secretary conferred with Mr. D. D. Reynolds of the Ames law firm of Hirschburg, Reynolds and Gilchrist and on November 22, 1955, Mr. Reynolds met with the Committee in Ames to render his opinion in the matter. He was of the opinion, and so advised the Committee, that it appeared unnecessary to incorporate at this time, although it might be advisable to do so within the next two or three years when the policies and activities of the Association are more definitely established and prescribed. Corporation responsibilities including taxation, etc., were discussed. The fact that the Association is not engaged in any activities at present which would involve financial risks of members and which

would seem to be the major reason for incorporating, seemed to outweigh any possible advantages of incorporating at this time and upon advice of our attorney no further action was taken in this direction.

Upon recommendation of the Executive Committee at the 1955 business session of the Association, certain specific monetary awards were established, payable in 1955 and benefiting especially students of veterinary medicine at Iowa State College. One of these Iowa State alumni awards was favorable to the veterinary profession as a whole and to be administered by the A.V.M.A. A statement concerning the disposition of these awards was received from Dean I. A. Merchant, as follows:

Dean I. A. Merchant presented the Alumni Association Awards at the annual convocation and awards meeting of the Iowa State College Student Chapter of the American Veterinary Medical Association, June 1, 1955.

Recipients of the \$50.00 student awards were Laurnie Nelson '57 of the Sophomore class and Leo N. Slife '56 of the Junior class. Individuals receiving these awards are chosen from the Sophomore and Junior classes on the basis of certain attainments and qualities by the Committee of Honors and Awards of the veterinary faculty.

A contribution of \$50.00 was made to the Student Veterinary Medical Reading Room for subscriptions to professional periodicals and purchase of books.

Final award was a contribution to the American Veterinary Medical Association Research Fund for veterinary student post-graduate study.

At the 1955 meeting of the Association a specific request and a specific proposal were made as follows:

1. Dean Merchant requested the appointment of a representative committee of alumni association members to serve in an advisory capacity to the dean in administrative matters of mutual interest. It was moved and carried "that such an advisory committee be appointed by the president."

2. It was proposed that consideration be given to the establishment of a memorial award in the near future in the name of Captain Burton C. Thomson ('38), Veterinary Corps, U. S. Army, who lost his life at the hands of the Japanese in World War II under infamous circumstances, with which the veterinary profession as a whole and Iowa State College alumni are generally familiar.

The Executive Committee is pleased to present progress on the proposals mentioned, as follows: 1. President Stanley L. Hendricks in cooperation with Dean I. A. Merchant has appointed a committee from the alumni association, to be known as the Committee Advisory to the Dean of Veterinary Medicine, Iowa State College on administrative matters of mutual interest. The members of this committee are as follows:

Dr. C. J. Starch ('53) Des Moines, Iowa

Dr. R. W. Finch ('43) Grimes, Iowa

Dr. G. B. Fincham ('18) Ames, Iowa

Dr. H. J. Classick ('27) Belmond, Iowa Dr. James Creel ('55) Cherokee, Iowa

Dr. J. W. Pirie ('36) Cedar Rapids, Iowa

The first meeting of this advisory group was held at Ames on July 27, 1955 during the Short Course for Veterinarians scheduled for July 26 and 27, 1955.

2. Regarding the proposal that consideration be given to the establishment of a memorial award in the name of Captain Burton C. Thomson, the Executive Committee discussed details at a meeting held in Ames on November 22, 1955. It was decided to recommend that such an award be established for 1956 as a Freshman award in the amount of \$100.00 to be called the Captain Burton C. Thomson Award and to be properly listed among awards in the catalog of the Division of Veterinary Medicine of Iowa State College.

3. It was further recommended that the scholarship awards for Sophomore and Senior students of veterinary medicine and the contributions to the student reading room and the A.V.M.A. research fund be increased from \$50.00 to \$100.00 for the year 1956. The current financial condition of the Association would seem to warrant these increases in expenditures, the desirability of which was expressed at the 1955 business session. The projects of the Alumni Association for 1956 will invlove an expenditure of \$500.00 and be in definite keeping of the objectives for which the organization was established.

Treasurer's Report for 1955 and

Report of Auditing Committee

Bank Balance January 1, 195 Total Deposits (Membership		$ $ 789.70 \\ 1473.05 $
Disbursements		
Attorney's Fees	\$ 25.00	
Postal Cards and Stamped		
Envelopes	83.12	
Printing [*]	34.97	
Executive Committe		
Luncheon	5.89	
Bank Charges	12.79	
Alumni Files	78.28	
A.V.M.A. Research Fund	50.00	
Laurnie W. Nelson Award	50.00	
Leo N. Slife Award	50.00	
Jr. A.V.M.A. Library Com-		
mittee	50.00	
Turned over to I.S.C.		
Veterinarian for new		
subscriptions	603.00	
subscriptions	000.00	1043.05
		10 10.00
Bank Balance Jan. 1, 1956		\$1219.70

Iowa State College Veterinarian

110

The Auditing Committee has examined the re-cords of the Treasurer, including bank deposit book, cancelled vouchers and bank statements, has found these records correct as stated and recommends the approval of this report. Signed: F. E. Brutsman

B. J. Gray

This completes the report of the Executive Committee which is presented for consideration and action.

The report of the Executive Committee was approved by motion, the implementation of details to be carried out by the 1956 officers.

Election of Officers

The report of the Nominating Committee was presented by Chairman, Wayne D. Yoder, ('43).

It will be recalled that at the business meeting of the Association in 1955, it was proposed that in order to assure continuity of effort in the management of the Association, Article IV of the Constitution be amended so as to stagger the expiration of the terms of service of the elective officers. A committee has been appointed to prepare the necessary amendment for presentation at this meeting but which cannot be effective until the 1957 meeting. Meanwhile, the nominating committee wishes to recommend the following slate of nominees for the several elective officers to serve for 1956.

President, F. E. Brutsman ('40)

Vice President, B. J. Gray ('43)

- Secretary-Treasurer, H. D. Bergman ('10)
- Member, Executive Committee, G. W. Cornwell ('41)
- Member, Executive Committee, J. A. Henderson ('34)

There being no further nominations, the report of the nominating committee was approved and the nominees declared elected.

Amendments to Constitution and By-Laws. The Committee consisting of E. A. Hewitt ('18), F. W. Young ('51) and C. H. Koll ('34) Chairman, recommended amendments as follows:

Constitution

Article IV

Officers and Executive Committee Officers of this association shall consist

Issue 2, 1956

of a president, president-elect, and a secretary-treasurer. In 1957, there shall be elected a president, president-elect, a secretary-treasurer and two executive committee members-one executive committee member for a term of 2 years. These five will constitute the executive committee, of which the alumni news editor of the Iowa State College Veterinarian shall be an ex officio member. Thereafter at each annual business meeting, there shall be elected a presidentelect, a secretary-treasurer and one executive committee member. The executive committee member shall serve for a term of two years. The secretary-treasurer shall be chosen from alumni living in Ames.

By-Laws

Article I

Duties of Officers

In both Section 2 and Section 4 the term president-elect be substituted for the term vice-president.

No vote was taken on the proposed amendments at the 1956 meeting because of constitutional restrictions, it being understood that both will be presented for final vote at the 1957 meeting.

There being no unfinished business and no further discussion of new business the meeting adjourned by motion at 10:00 p.m.

> —H. D. Bergman Secretary-Treasurer

NOTICE

You do not have to be a graduate of Iowa State College to subscribe to the I.S.C. Veterinarian.

It has been brought to our attention that because this is the official publication of the I.S.C. Veterinary Alumni Association, some people thought that they had to belong to the Alumni Association to subscribe

This is a student managed publication and the Minutes of the Alumni Association are simply included with the rest of the Alumni News.

- The Editor

In Memorium



Dr. Harry W. Orr

Dr. Harry W. Orr, Dean of the School of Veterinary Medicine at Oklahoma A & M College passed away on January 14, at his home in Stillwater, Oklahoma, from a heart attack.

Dr. Orr was born at Mystic, Iowa, August 9, 1895. He was graduated from the Mason City High School in 1914. He entered the Veterinary Division of Iowa State College as a student in the fall of 1914. Because of the entry of the United States into World War I, his class continued in school during the summer of 1917 and finished on December 21, 1917. He became a fellow in the Department of Veterinary Physiology and Pharmacology in 1917 and served through the spring of 1918, at which time he received the commission of 2nd Lieutenant in the Veterinary Medical Corps of the U.S. Army. After serving in the army, he entered private practice of veterinary medicine at Strawberry Point, Iowa, where he remainded or about 1 year.

In 1919 he married Miss Ruth Sundell of Mason City and the same year accepted an appointment to the faculty of Oklahoma A & M College as assistant professor in the Department of Bacteriology, Physiology and Veterinary Science. He was promoted to associate professor of physiology in 1923, professor of physiology in 1927 and in 1948 was made Head of the Department of Veterinary Physiology in the newly created School of Veterinary Medicine.

In the fall of 1930 he obtained a leave of absence from his duties at Oklahoma A & M and spent a year at Iowa State College taking graduate work in physiology. He received the Master of Science degree in 1931.

On July 1, 1953, he became Dean of the School of Veterinary Medicine, Oklahoma A & M College. He succeeded Dr. C. H. McElroy as Dean of that school. Dr. Orr served as member of the Oklahoma Board of Examiners in the Basic Sciences since 1937.

Dean Orr was well known throughout the nation and received state, national and international honors in his professional field. In 1952 he attended the Second International Congress of Physiolog⁻⁷ and Pathology in Copenhagen, Denmark. In 1955 he was one of six graduates of Iowa State College chosen to receive the Chicago Alumni Merit Award for meritorious service to his fellowmen.

His professional memberships include: The American Veterinary Medical Association, Oklahoma Veterinary Medical Association, American Association for the Advancement of Science, Oklahoma Academy of Science, New York Academy of Science, American Society of Veterinary Physiologists and Pharmacologists.

His fraternal memberships include: A. F. and A. M. Blue Lodge, Consistory; Phi Kappa Phi; Pi Eta Sigma; and Phi Sigma. He was a member of the Kappa Sigma social fraternity and served for more than 30 years as alumni advisor to the Oklahoma A & M Chapter.

He was also a member of Rotary, Chamber of Commerce and the Presbyterian Church.

Survivors include his wife, Ruth, of Stillwater, Oklahoma; his mother, Mrs. Cara L. Orr, of Cear Lake, Iowa; a

daughter, Mrs. Jean Donaldson, 1816 W. Arrowhead Place, Stillwater; a son, William H. Orr, af Oklahoma City; three grandchildren, and a brother, G. G. Orr, of Houston, Texas.

The A & M College of Oklahoma, its School of Veterinary Medicine, and the veterinary profession has suffered a most serious loss in the untimely death of Dean Orr.

Dr. Philip R. Allen, '49, practitioner at Volga, Iowa, for the past two years was killed accidentally while pheasant hunting last November 29th. He was removing the shotgun from the car when the trigger apparently caught on a dehorning instrument and discharged.

CORRECTION

The death of **Dr. E. V. Beamer, '40**, reported in the last issue was an error. We are advised that he is quite healthy and living in Des Moines, Iowa.

GENERAL NEWS

Dr. Harlan M. Stanton, '43, has opened his new Tustin Small Animal Hosiptal at 1122 S. E. Highway 101, Santa Ana, Calif.

Dr. Vernon D. Spear, '53, has sold the Bogaard Small Animal Hosiptal in Cedar Rapids, Iowa, and has established a practice in Waterloo, Iowa.

Dr. Robert E. Gamble, '53, is now in practice at Garwin, Iowa. Since graduation he had been associated with Dr. Le-Roy R. Gallentine, '45, at Gilman, Iowa.

Dr. W. C. Hillman, '55, is practicing at Perry, Iowa .

Dr. Paul M. Strayer, '51, is now located at Lime Springs, Iowa. He had been practicing at Elma, Iowa.

of the gastro-intestinal and genito-urinary tracts



IN DOGS AND IN CATS

Gastritis, Colitis, Diarrhea, Cystitis, Bladder Colic, Urinary Calculi, Dysuria due to Sand, Gravel, Urethritis, Nervous Frequency of Urination.

DOSE: ¼ to ½ Octin ampule, intramuscularly.

¹/₄ to 1 Octin tablet, repeated.

Irwin, W. F.: Southwestern Vet., May, 1950.

Brown, W. J.: J.A.V.M.A., May, 1950.

Octin[®], brand of Isometheptene, E. Bilhuber, Inc.

Bilhuber-Knoll Corp. Orange, N. J.

Issue 2, 1956

MARRIAGES

Miss Margaret Taylor, Harlan, Iowa, to Dr. D. B. Jilson, '53, Neligh, Nebr.

Miss Else Nielsen and Dr. M. O. Pitcher, '54, were married July 23, 1955, in Riverside, Ill.

Miss Norvelle Wilkens and Dr. Marvin Mitchell, '55 were married July 9, 1955, in Bridgeport, Conn.

BIRTHS

To **Dr. and Mrs. R. C. Schuknecht**, '43, Saukville, Wis., a son Thomas Roy, August 28, 1955.

To Dr. and Mrs. S. B. Wilson, '49, Starbuck, Minn, a son, Stephan, September 29, 1955.

To Dr. and Mrs. R. C. Wahl, '43, Sibley, Iowa, a son, James Ryder, September 5, 1955.

To **Dr. and Mrs. E. E. Schneckloth**, '53, New Liberty, Iowa, a daughter, Jill Anne, September 4, 1955.

To Dr. and Mrs. G. L. Childress, '55, Roodhouse, Ill, a daughter, November 6, 1955.

To **Dr. and Mrs. Dean Philson**, '54, Emmetsburg, Iowa, a daughter, Michelle Lynn, September 26, 1955.

To Dr. and Mrs. Jack Moye, '47, Junction City, Ore., a daughter, Janet Gail, September 17, 1955. To Dr. and Mrs. M. H. Westerfeldt, '43, a son, Gary Marvin, July 17, 1955.

To **Dr. and Mrs. Richard H. Baum**, '55, Osage, Iowa, a daughter, Kathryn Louise, August 16, 1955.

To Dr. and Mrs. L. J. Magnall, '44, Tripoli, Iowa, a son, Tony Craig, October 10, 1955.

To **Dr. and Mrs. L. S. Shirrell**, '52, Frankfort, Ky., twins, Judy Ann and Jack Neal, October 9, 1955.

To Dr. and Mrs. H. C. Henderson, '52, Henderson, Iowa, a son, Robert Earl, October 26, 1955.

CLASS OF 1942

Dr. C. H. Burnham has a small animal hospital and conducts a mixed practice in Centerville, Iowa. He is a member of the School Board and the Agriculture Committee of the Centerville Chamber of Commerce. Dr. Burnham is married and has five children.

Dr. Louis Feldman is a general practitioner at Rolfe, Iowa. He has been practicing in Rolfe since his graduation in 1942. He has three children.

Dr. Edward Hanna is in general practice at Springville, Iowa. He served in the Army before entering practice in Springville. Dr. Hanna was instrumental in the formation of Diamond Laboratories. He is active in civic work in Springville. He has been President of the East Central Iowa Veterinary Medical Association and Vice President of the Iowa Veterinary Medical Association.

Dr. Arthur C. Gathmann conducts a mixed practice from his office located at 202 Front Street, Galva, Illinois. He is in partnership with **Dr. G. I. Luymes, ISC** '50. Dr. Gathmann practiced in Kewanee, Ill. and served in the Army Veterinary Corps before coming to Galva. He is active in the Rotary Club and the Missippi Valley Veterinary Medical Association. Dr. Gathmann is married and has four children.

Dr. Harvey H. Hoyt resides at 1565 Glenhill Road, St. Paul, Minnesota. From 1942 to 1947 Dr. Hoyt was Veterinarian in Charge, Animal Disease Control Laboratory, State Department of Agriculture, University of Wisconsin at Madison, Wisconsin. He is now Professor and Head of the Division of Veterinary Medicine and Clinics, School of Veterinary Medicine, University of Minnesota, St. Paul, Minnesota. **Dr. Harold E. Held** lives at 1229 South State Street, Freeport, Illinois. He conducts a general practice with a small animal hospital. Dr. Held is a member of the Freeport Chambr of Commerce and the Masonic Lodge. He is also past president of the Northern Illinois Veterinary Medical Association. Dr. and Mrs. Held have two children.

Dr. Clarence W. Meeusen conducts a general practice in Cedar Grove, Wisconsin. He is active in community work and is Commander of the American Legion Post in Cedar Grove.

Dr. D. F. Gilmore is in a general practice at Brookville, Indiana. He previously practiced at Somerset, Kentucky, and Madison, Indiana, before coming to Brookville. Dr. and Mrs. Gilmore have two children.



Dr. H. P. Lortz is in a large animal practice in Coleridge, Nebraska. He is a Town Councilman and is active in the Lutheran Church and the American Legion in Coleridge.

Dr. Robert C. Jacobs is in a general practice in Merrill, Iowa. He was in the Army Air Corps, practiced at Montevideo, Minnesota and was associated with the Foot and Mouth Disease Commission in Mexico City before coming to Merrill.

Dr. C. Donald Van Houweling lives in Oakton, Virginia. He is Director of Livestock Regulatory Programs, Agriculture Research Service, USDA. His present office is in Washington, D. C. He is a member of the Oakton Citizen's Committee and is also active in the Methodist Church. Dr. Van Houweling was Executive Secretary of the American Veterinary Medical Association from 1948 to 1953. Dr. and Mrs. Van Houweling have four children.

Dr. A. M. Olson is in general practice in Morrison, Illinois. He is a member of the Masonic Lodge and a Board Member of the Methodist Church. For 3 years Dr. Olson was a Board Member of the Missouri Valley Veterinary Medical Association. Dr. and Mrs. Olson have four children.

Dr. Gordon J. Kruger is in a mixed practice in Bloomington, Illinois. He operates a hospital for small animals. Dr. Kruger is married and has five children. He was associated with the University of Illinois before entering practice in Bloomington.

Dr. Vernon S. Peterson conducts a large animal practice in Colman, South Dakota. He is Commander of the American Legion Post there. Dr. and Mrs. Peterson have four children. **Dr. Joseph Brown White** has a mixed practice in Davenport, Iowa. He operates a large and small animal hospital. Dr. White is active in the Newcomb Presbyterian Church in Davenport. The Whites have three children.

Dr. George E. Keller lives at 1793 Palace Avenue, St. Paul, Minnesota. He is Veterinarian in Charge of Brucellosis Control of the Minnesota State Livestock Sanitary Board. Dr. Keller is past president of the Twin Cities Veterinary Medical Association and was on the Local Arrangements Committee for the 1955 AVMA Convention.

Dr. Clifford T. Orton lives at 807 North Center Street, Beaver Dam, Wisconsin. He conducts a mixed practice and plans to build a small animal hospital this year. Dr. Orton is active in the Rotary Club, Masonic Lodge, P. T. A., and other civic organizations in Beaver Dam. He is also President of the Southeastern Wisconsin Veterinary Medical Association. He and Mrs. Orton have three children.

Dr. Paul A. Ling lives at 302 East Wall Street, Lexington, Illinois. He conducts a general practice there. Dr. Ling is President of the McLean County Veterinary Association. Dr. and Mrs. Ling have three children.

Dr. Hobart D. Ogden is in a large animal practice in Tampico, Illinois. He is active on the School Board and in the Masonic Lodge. The Ogdens have three children.

Dr. D. T. McGill is in general practice in Creighton, Nebraska. He is a member of the School Board and the Creighton Chamber of Commerce. Dr. McGill is also President of the Northeast Nebraska Veterinary Medical Association.

Dr. George H. Gitz, Jr. lives at 906 Third Ave. N. E., Clarion, Iowa. He is a general practitioner there. Dr. Gitz is a member of the Rotary Club, the American Legion and the Masonic Lodge. He is also active in the Methodist Church at Clarion. Dr. Gitz has served as Secretary and Treasurer of the Upper Iowa Veterinary Medical Association and Vice President of the Iowa Veterinary Medical Association.

Dr. Eugene O. Nehmer has a large animal practice in Campbellsport, Wisconsin. He was in practice at Kewoskum, Wisconsin before going to Campbellsport. Dr. and Mrs. Nehmer have five children.

Dr. Perry Jensen and his partner, Dr. Earl Prouse, conduct a general practice at George, Iowa. He is active in Kiwanis Club and is a member of the Lutheran Church Council in George. Dr. Jensen is President-Elect of the Interstate Veterinary Association and Executive Board Member of the Iowa Veterinary Medical Association. Dr. and Mrs. Jensen have two children.

Dr. E. S. McClelland resides at 114 East Seventh Street, Aledo, Illinois. He conucts a large animal practice. He is past president of the Mercer County Veterinary Medical Association and has been director of the National Shetland Pony Club for the past 3 years. He also writes a monthly column for the American Shetland Pony Journal. Dr. and Mrs. McCelland have five children.

Dr. Russell E. Rasmussen has a mixed practice in Bloomfield, Iowa. He is active in Lions Club and other civic organizations. Dr. Rasmussen is past secretary of the Southeastern Iowa Veterinary Association and Vice President of the Eastern Iowa Association. He and Mrs. Rasmussen have three children.

Issue 2, 1956

Dr. J. W. Sexton, in partnership with Dr. E. C. Ritter, conducts a large animal practice in Sumner, Iowa. Dr. Sexton is a cattle feeder and recently sold the "S and R" Sundry. He and Mrs. Sexton have ten children.

CLASS OF 1951

Dr. William L. Anderson is now in general practice at Malvern, Iowa. He is Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Malvern Baptist Church. Doctor and Mrs. Anderson have a son, Kevin Lee, age 2 years.

Dr. D. D. Lee has a general practice at Sac City, Iowa. He practiced with Dr. R. W. Brown for a year before going to Sac City. He is President of the Coon Valley Veterinary Medical Association. Last May he moved his office and equipment into a remodeled office building. He is a member of the Town Council. Dr. and Mrs. Lee have two children: Cynthia, 3; and Diane, age 2 years.

Dr. John B. Watkins lives at 318 9th Ave. S. E., Minot, North Dakota. He is in partnership with Drs. R. E. Shigley, J. C. Foss, and G. M. Christensen at the Minot Veterinary Clinic. He is a member of the Rotary Club, Masonic Lodge, and holds office in the Presbyterian Church. Dr. Watkins is past president of the Lakes Region VMA, North Dakota. The Watkins have two foster children: Judy, 12; and Mark, age 2 months.

Dr. Earl L. Wahl has a general practice at Anamosa, Iowa. He is President of the East Central Iowa VMA. Community work includes membership on the Board of Directors, Chamber of Commerce, Church Building Committee, and office of Deacon on the Church Council. Dr. and Mrs. Wahl have three children: Teresa, 6; Cynthia, 4; and Gregory, 2. **Dr. John W. Budding** is engaged in general practice at Brighton, Iowa. His address is Box 216 at Brighton. He is a member of the Southeast Iowa AVMA. He serves as Vice-President of the Community Club and as member of the Methodist Church Board. Doctor and Mrs. Budding have two children: Lynn Marting, age 16 months; and Susan Diane, age 6 weeks.

Dr. H. C. Lowe has a general practice at Columbus Junction, Iowa. He has a clinic located on the edge of town. Doctor Lowe is Vice-President of the Southeast Iowa Veterinary Medical Association. He is a member of the City Council. There are two children: Brian Cecil, age 2¹/₂ years; and Mark Alan, 6 months.

Dr. Jay Q. Bell has been located in Fairfield, Iowa since 1953. His office is located at 103 North B. Following graduation he practiced at Parkston, S. D. for 2 years. He is a member of the Board of Directors of the Chamber of Commerce, Secretary of the Presbyterian Men's Club, and a member of the Lion's Club. Doctor and Mrs. Bell have three children: Sue Ellen, age 4 years; Martha, age 2 years; and David, 2 months.

Dr. John Janss is located at Belle Plaine, Iowa, where he took over the practice of the late Dr. J. J. Strandberg in 1951. He uses a two-way radio to facilitate his work which concerns mostly large animals. He has been on the School Board since 1951 and serves on the Board of the Methodist Church. Doctor and Mrs. Janss have two children: Lou Ellen, age 4½ years; and Julie Ann, age 19 months.

Dr. Frank L. Howland is in general practice at Norway, Iowa. Dr. and Mrs. Howland have two children: John, age 4; and Elizabeth, age 2.

Dr. Alan R. Raun has a clinic at 2305 N. Court, Ottumwa, Iowa. He is in partnership with Dr. Harry D. McCreedy, '45, who joined him in 1952. The practice includes both large and small animal work. Doctor Raun is President of the Southeast Iowa Veterinary Medical Association, a member of the Advisory Board of the Iowa AVMA and a past member of the Membership Committee. He is a member of the Agricultural Committee of the Chamber of Commerce and is a Rotarian. His special interest is horses; he has served numerous times as announcer, veterinarian, and ring master at horse shows. The Rauns have three children: Rebecca Ann, 4; Elizabeth Ellen, 3; and Margaret Alice, age 1 year.

Dr. Merrill M. Vanderlou lives at 1947 Green St., Dubuque, Iowa. He has a small animal hospital with some facilities for large animals. This past year he was Official Veterinarian at the Iowa State Fair. He has held other positions of district and state associations. Dr. Vanderlou is a Deacon and Trustee of the Presbyterian Church. They have three children: William H., 4; Marjorie L., 3; and Robert M., 8 days.

Dr. Barry O. Barnes lives at 108 E. Broadway, Milford, Iowa. He is engaged in general practice and has a 16 cage small animal hospital with boarding facilities. He is Dickenson County Representative to the Iowa AVMA. Offices held in the community include Town Councilman, 2nd term; Chairman of the Boy Scout Committee, Volunteer fireman, and Treasurer of the American Legion Post. The Barnes have two children: Lynn Ellen, age 28 months; and Julie Kay, age 8 month.

Dr. Jack P. Stream is living at 202 S. Stone, Creston, Iowa. He has a combination large and small animal clinic. He is a member of the Kiwanis Club. Dr. and Mrs. Stream have three children: Cheryl, 9; Vicki, 8; and Steven, age 4½ years.



Everlastingly in search of the surer_the safer

As long as disease exists—as long as animal and poultry development, growth and well-being can be improvedthere can be no relaxing of effort to find the new and better ingredient, formula and method. That is the creed of Fort Dodge Laboratories, world's largest exclusive producers of veterinary products. With many important discoveries and advancements to its credit, forward-looking creative research remains a never-ending assignment at Fort Dodge.



FORT DODGE FORT DODGE LABORATORIES, INC., FORT DODGE, IOWA

Issue 2, 1956

Dr. Dale E. Briley living at 1415 W. Army Post Rd., Des Moines, Iowa, is now in general practice. He hopes to build a animal hospital soon. Doctor Briley is on the Board of Directors of the Lions Club. There are two children: Jordan David, age 26 months; and Karen Sue, 2½ months.

Dr. Paul M. Strayer now lives at Box 288, Lime Springs, Iowa. He was located at Elma, Iowa for 4 years following graduation. Dr. and Mrs. Strayer have one son: Jeffrey John, age 8 months.

Dr. Neil F. Chapman is living at 425 North Dodge, Algona, Iowa. He has been in general practice at this location since graduation. He holds the office of President of the Iowa Lakes Veterinary Medical Association. Dr. and Mrs. Chapman have three children: Bruce, 6; Elizabeth, 4; and Pamela, age 1 year.

Dr. R. A. Stewart is in general practice at Lake Benton, Minnesota. The Stewarts have three children: Kathryn, 5; Jean, 3; and Robert, age 4 months.

Dr. Donald H. Perkins is in partnership with **Dr. Warren Kilpatrick**, '49, at Mediapolis, Iowa. They have a general practice. Doctor Perkins is past president of the Southeast Iowa Veterinary Medical Association. He is secretary of the Lutheran Church Building Committee, and Vice-President of the Lions Club. There are five children: Bobby 8, Ann 7, Carin 5, Dick 3, and Eddy 1½.

Dr. Otto K. Van Roekel is a general practitioner at Aledo, Illinois. He is Secretary-Treasurer of the Mercer County VMA. He serves on the Board of Directors of the Junior Chamber of Commerce and as a Trustee of the Methodist Church. Doctor and Mrs. Van Roekel have two children: Kermit Gregory, 3; and Vivian Suzanne, 1.

Dr. Verle W. Foote lives at 815 N. 6th St., Chariton, Iowa. He has carried on a general practice in Chariton since graduation. Dr. and Mrs. Foote have two children: Alan Verle, 4; and Robert William, age 2 years.

Dr. Dale L. Brinkmeyer is a general practitioner at New London, Iowa. Dr. and Mrs. Brinkmeyer have two children: Denise, age 3 years; and Dirk, age 1 year.

Dr. Robert W. Friedell is a general practitioner in Gays Mills, Wisconsin. Following graduation he was located at Ronen, Montana, for 2 years. Dr. and Mrs. Friedell have three children: Sharon, 5; Ronald, 3; and Jeanne, age 3 weeks.

Dr. W. W. Cook has a large animal practice at Bagley, Iowa. He is a Town Councilman and is active in the American Legion. Doctor and Mrs. Cook have two children: Bob, age $2\frac{1}{2}$; and Dick, age $1\frac{1}{2}$.

Dr. Dale W. Clausen has a general practice at Stuart, Iowa. Clausens have three children: Deborah, age 3; Denise, age 2; and Darlene, 1 year.

Dr. James B. Brown has a general practice at Trenton, Iowa, where he has been located since graduation. He is a member of the School Board and Chairman of the Methodist Church Board. Dr. and Mrs. Brown have four children: Janine 7; David, 6; Susan, 3; and William, age 9 months.

Dr. Richard C. Searl has a general practice at Farragut, Iowa. Last summer a veterinary hospital was completed. Dr. Searl serves on the City Council. There are two children; Richard Luther, 11; and Patricia Lee, 3.

Dr. R. A. Telleen has a general practice at Jefferson, Iowa. He is Committeeman of the local Boy Scout Troop. A special interest is a partnership concerned with the breeding of Dachshunds. The Telleens have one child: Teresa Jo, age 2 years.

Dr. James R. Rosdail has a general practice at Pomeroy, Iowa. Professional positions include membership of the Executive Board of the North Central Iowa Veterinary Medical Association, a member of the Membership Committee of the State Association, and past president and Secretary of the Coon Valley VMA. Dr. and Mrs. Rosdail have five children: Jay, 6½, Gail, 5; Jan, 4; Joy, 2; and Leanne, 1.

Dr. Lee R. McGregor is located at Salem, South Dakota, where he has a general practice. He is Chairman of the Methodist Church Board, Chairman of the Local Shrine Circus Ticket Sales, and local Salvation Army Drive Chairman. Doctor and Mrs. McGregor have two children: Connie Lee, age 4½ years; and Nancy Ann, age 3 years.

Dr. Dale E. Kelley is living at 202 Jackson St., Sauk City, Wisconsin. He and his partner, Dr. R. L. Winans, Minn. '54, have a dairy practice. Doctor Kelley is President of the Dane County Veterinary Medical Association. Community work includes the offices of Vice-President of the Sauk County Bowling League and Commander of the American Legion Post. Within the next 3 years he hopes to have a veterinary hospital.

Remainder to appear in next issue.

* Mastitis

(continued from page 88)

7. Oxytocic factor, intravenously, promotes let-down of milk and removes debris from milk ducts, but the value of this

Issue 2, 1956

in mastitis treatment is questioned by some research workers.

8. Ephedrine when used with penicillin by intramammary infusion apparently aids in reducing congestion and swelling.

9. Mercosterol, a mercuriated sterol, is bacteriocidal and bacteriostatic against a wide spectrum of bacteria and gave excellent results in the treatment of several cases of mastitis.

10. Furacin alone or in combination with penicillin as intramammary infusion is an effective agent in the treatment of acute and chronic mastitis.

LITERATURE CITED

- 1. Hydrotherapy treatment of bovine mastitis. Jour. Am. Vet. Med. Assoc. 121:464, 1952.
- 2. McIntosh, R. A., Novoxil treatment for chronic mastitis. Canad. Jour. of Comp. Med., 6:83-85, 1942.
- McKay, S. M. and MacPherson, D. A., The value of iodized mineral oil in mastitis. Brit. Vet. Jour., 110:167–182, 1954.
- Brit. Vet. Jour., 110:167–182, 1954.
 4. Arnandez, J. L., The use of hyaluronidase in certain cases of mastitis. Jour. Am. Vet. Med. Assoc. 120:90–92, 1952.
- Durrell, W. B., ACTH valuable in case of acute coliform mastitis. Jour. Am. Vet. Med. Assoc., 125:373–375, 1954.
- Vigue, R. F., Intramammary use of hydrocortisone in mastitis: A pre-liminary report. Vet. Med., 50:679-682, 1955.
- 7. Schipper, I. A., A new approach to mastitis therapy. Vet. Med., 48:401–404, 1953.
- 8. Smith, I. M. and Pattison, I. H., The effect of oxytocic principle on experimental *Streptococcus agalactiae* mastitis in cows. Vet. Rec. 6:724-726, 1954.
- Smith, I. M. and Pattison, I. H., The effect of oxytocic principle on an experimental Streptococcus agalactiae in goats. Vet. Rec. 66:372-374, 1954.
- Thomas, R. M. et. al., The use of ephedrine and antibiotics in the treatment acute mastitis of sheep and cattle. Vet. Med. 47:52-54, 1952.
- 11. Rothenberg, N. A., A new intramammary treatment for mastitis. No. Amer. Vet., 34: 775–777, 1953.
- Mires, M. H., Nitrofurazone A practical antibacterial agent for bovine mastitis. Jour. Am. Vet. Med. Assoc., 117:49-51, 1950.
- Kakavas, J. C. et. al., Chemotherapy of bovine mastitis with furacin and penicillin mixture. Jour. Am. Vet. Med. Assoc., 119: 203-206, 1951.
- Simon, J. and Schmidt, E. G., The therapeutic efficiency of furacin and furacinpenicillin mixture for mastitis caused by *Streptococcus agalactiae*. Jour. Am. Vet. Med. Assoc., 121:467–468, 1952.
- Jones, L. M., Veterinary Pharmacology and Therapeutics. Iowa State College Press, Ames, Ia., 1954.